# **CENTRAL STOCKPORT AREA COMMITTEE**

Meeting: 30 November 2023

At: 6.00 pm

#### **PRESENT**

Councillor Wendy Wild (Chair) in the chair; Councillors Christine Carrigan, Asa Caton, Laura Clingan, Dickie Davies, Sue Glithero, Janet Mobbs, Leah Taylor, Karl Wardlaw and Matt Wynne.

# 1. MINUTES

The minutes (copies of which had been circulated) of the meeting held on 19 October 2023 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

# 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors and officers were invited to declare any interests they had in any of the items on the agenda for the meeting.

The following interest was declared:

### Personal and prejudicial interest

<u>Councillor</u> <u>Interest</u>

Leah Taylor Agenda item 9 - Combined School Streets – Proposed

Permanent Traffic Regulation Order – Prohibition of Driving (Except for Permit Holders) as an employee of one of the schools mentioned within the report. Councillor Taylor left the meeting for the duration of consideration and determination of

the item of business.

# 3. URGENT DECISIONS

No urgent decisions were reported.

# 4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

#### (i) Chair's announcements

Town of Culture events continued to take place and further information about events could be viewed on the Town of Culture website.

# (ii) Public question time

Members of the public were invited to put questions to the Chair on any matters in the powers of duties of the Area Committee, subject to the exclusions set out within the Code of Practice.

No public questions were submitted.

# (iii) Neighbourhood policing

Inspector John Picton (Greater Manchester Police (GMP)) attended the meeting to provide an update and answer questions in relation to neighbourhood policing issues within the area represented by the Area committee.

The following comments were made/ issues raised:

- Inspector Picton was temporarily Chief Inspector for the area since week commencing 20 November 2023. In his new role, Chief Inspector Picton would move the unit out of the Cheadle base and into the town centre to increase visibility in the town centre.
- It was reported that two successful days of action to tackle retail crime and anti-social behaviour in Stockport had taken place since the last update to Area Committee. Two further days of action in Edgeley and the town centre were expected to take place in the run up to Christmas.
- It was noted that a number of stop searches and arrests for several reasons which
  included but were not limited to, public order, theft and driving offences had been
  made.
- A Stockport police officer had been named 'Officer of the Year'.
- Two officers had visited an address to give food to people in need as part of work to support local people and local charities.
- Members were encouraged to feedback which specific updates and data were particularly useful for the Area Committee.

RESOLVED – That Chief Inspector John Picton be thanked for his attendance.

# (iv) Petitions

No petitions were submitted.

# (v) Open forum

A representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance reported that no organisation had indicated that they wished to address the Area Committee as part of the open forum arrangements.

# 5. DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

Development applications were submitted.

(Note: full details of the decisions including conditions and reasons for granting or refusing planning permission and imposing conditions are given in the schedule of plans. The Deputy Chief Executive is authorised to determine conditions and reasons and they are not therefore referred to in committee minutes unless the committee makes a specific decision on a condition or reason. In order to reduce printing costs and preserve natural resources, the schedule of plans is not reproduced within these minutes. A copy of the schedule of plans is available on the council's website at

# Central Stockport Area Committee - 30 November 2023

<u>www.stockport.gov.uk/planningdecisions</u>. Copies of the schedule of plans, or any part thereof, may be obtained upon payment of the council's reasonable charges).

A representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance outlined the procedure for public speaking on panning applications.

# (i) <u>DC/087427 - Woodbank Community Food Hub, Woodbank Park, Turncroft Lane,</u> Offerton, Stockport, SK1 4JR

In respect of application DC/087427 for the proposed erection of a dedicated, purpose built shed for the packing of harvested crops at Woodbank Community Food Hub, Woodbank Park, Turncroft Lane, Offerton, Stockport, SK1 4JR,

the applicant spoke in support of the application.

It was then

RESOLVED – That planning permission be granted, subject to conditions.

# (ii) DC/089538 - 8 Vernon Street, Stockport, SK1 1TY

In respect of application DC/089538 relating to the proposed change of use from cafe/restaurant (Use Class E(b) to a drinking establishment (Sui Generis) (retrospective) at 8 Vernon Street, Stockport, SK1 1TY,

a member of the public spoke in objection to the application, and

a representative of the applicant spoke in support of the application.

It was then

MOVED AND SECONDED – That planning permission for a change of use be granted, subject to the imposition of a condition requiring that no part of the premises shall be open for trading purposes and no customers shall be within the premises outside of the following hours:

- Sunday to Thursday and Bank Holidays, 08:00 to 02:00hrs; and
- Friday and Saturday, 08:00 to 02:30hrs

in the interests of safeguarding the amenity of neighbouring residents situated in proximity to the proposed drinking establishment in accordance with the provisions of policies CS6 and SIE-1.

For the motion 3, against 7.

#### MOTION NOT CARRIED

FURTHER MOTION MOVED AND SECONDED – That planning permission be granted, subject to conditions as per the officer's report.

For the motion 7, abstentions 3.

MOTION CARRIED

It was then

RESOLVED (7 for, 3 abstentions) - That planning permission be granted, subject to conditions as per the officer's report.

# 6. PLANNING APPEALS, ENFORCEMENT APPEALS AND NOTICES

A representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance submitted a report (copies of which had been circulated) listing any outstanding or recently determined planning appeals and enforcements within the area represented by the Central Stockport Area Committee.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

# 7. EDGELEY DISTRICT CENTRE ACTION PLAN - UPDATE

A representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance submitted a report (copies of which had been circulated) of the Director of Place Management providing an update on the delivery of the Edgeley District Centre Action Plan, including initial thoughts as to how the £5,000 from UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) could be allocated, as well as proposed support provision for large Local Centres.

The following comments were made/ issues raised:

- The Christmas light switch on in Edgeley had been a success, and had included music by Stockport Silver Band.
- Traders had noticed less theft and issues relating to off-road bikes which tied into Chief Inspector Picton's earlier update to Area Committee.
- An online information portal would be available to traders to provide them with support and advice provided by the District Centre Managers.
- It was suggested that the £5,000 UKSPF funding be used to tackle highways issues on Castle Street, and it was noted that discussions were taking place as to the allocation of the funds. The importance of ensuring the UKSPF funds were allocated to planned projects relating to community safety was stressed.

Thanks were expressed to officers for their work to date.

#### RESOLVED -

- a) That the progress made in in developing the Edgeley District Centre Action Plan be noted.
- b) That the plans to develop an information portal to support businesses and organisations in large Local Centres be noted.

# 8. DAVENPORT PLAYING FIELDS

A representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance submitted a report (copies of which had been circulated) of the Director of Place Management detailing action taken to date regarding anti-social behaviour on Davenport Playing Fields and requested members to consider whether any further action be taken.

The following comments were made/ issues raised:

- Actions taken to reduce anti-social behaviour on the playing fields to date were noted.
- There was a need to maintain public access to the fields. Current access restrictions included access by pushchairs and wheelchairs, however these access restrictions served a purpose and officers sought to maintain these restrictions. The restrictions were reviewed annually.
- It was reported that CCTV could deter anti-social behaviour in the car park. Members agreed that opportunities for funding for CCTV provision be explored (namely, the UKSPF fund and Ward Discretionary Budget).

#### RESOLVED -

- (1) That the existing access control methods be maintained.
- (2) That the representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance explore funding options for CCTV provision.

# 9. COMBINED SCHOOL STREETS - PROPOSED PERMANENT TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER - PROHIBITION OF DRIVING (EXCEPT FOR PERMIT HOLDERS)

A representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance submitted a report (copies of which had been circulated) of the Director of Place Management detailing a proposal to amend the existing Experimental Prohibition of Driving (except for Permit Holders) Traffic Regulation Order at Broomfield Drive, South Reddish, Bulkeley Street, Edgeley and Ashfield Crescent, Cheadle, to that of a Permanent Traffic Regulation Order.

It was suggested that the Cabinet Member be recommended to include Lucy Street and Bowdon Street within the scheme.

RESOLVED – That the Cabinet Member for Parks, Highways & Transport Services be recommended to approve the Traffic Regulation Order as set out in Appendix A and with the inclusion of Lucy Street and Bowdon Street, to be established on a permanent basis.

# 10. PROPOSED TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS - STOCKPORT INTERCHANGE DEVELOPMENT

A representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance submitted a report (copies of which had been circulated) of the Director of Place Management detailing the proposed Traffic Regulation Orders to complement the local highway changes and reconfiguration following the development of Stockport Bus Station, now formally known as Stockport Interchange.

RESOLVED – That the Cabinet Member for Parks, Highways & Transport Services be recommended to approve the legal advertising of the proposed Traffic Regulation Orders set out in Appendix 1 and drawing 5174-INTERCHANGE-TROS-01 (Rev D) and that, subject to no objections being received within 21-days from the advertisement date, the order be made.

# 11. STATION ROAD - WALKING AND CYCLING CONNECTION

A representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance submitted a report (copies of which had been circulated) of the Director of Place Management which provided the results of the recent consultation undertaken on the Mayoral Challenge Fund proposals for an improved walking and cycling route along Station Road between Stockport Railway Station and the bridgescape which links to the new Interchange, and sought Cabinet Member approval for the scheme and introduction of permanent Traffic Regulation Orders for moving and static restrictions.

RESOLVED – That the Cabinet Member for Parks, Highways & Transport Services be recommended to approve the legal advertisement of the Moving and Static Traffic Regulation Orders set out in Appendix A and attached drawings and, subject to no objections being received within 21 days from the advertisement date, that the order be made.

# 12. PROPOSED HIGHWAY STOPPING UP ORDER - CHARLES STREET, HEAVILEY, STOCKPORT

A representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance submitted a report (copies of which had been circulated) of the Director of Place Management which sought approval to have a section of Highway extinguished by formally applying to the Magistrates Court for the Stopping Up of part of the adopted Highway on Charles Street, Heaviley.

RESOLVED - That the request and that an application to the Magistrates Court be made for the relevant section of the existing adopted Highway on Charles Street, Heaviley, to be legally Stopped Up be approved.

# 13. ATF2 EDGELEY TO STOCKPORT OBJECTION REPORT

A representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance submitted joint a report (copies of which had been circulated) of the Director of Place Management and Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance detailing objections to the proposed Traffic Regulation Orders for the ATF2 Edgeley to Stockport scheme.

RESOLVED – That the Cabinet Member for Parks, Highways & Transport Services be recommended to approve the Traffic Regulation Orders for the ATF2 Edgeley to Stockport scheme as originally advertised.

# 14. WARD DISCRETIONARY FUND: WOODBANK MEMORIAL PARK PLAY PROVISION SCHEME

A representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance submitted a report (copies of which had been circulated) of the Director of Place Management which requested funds to facilitate the purchase of additional play equipment for the play area at Woodbank Memorial Park.

RESOLVED – That the Cabinet Member for Finance & Resources be recommended to approve the use of £10,000 from the Ward Discretionary Fund (Manor ward allocation) towards the cost of improved play at Woodbank Memorial Park and for the funds to be deposited in Capital Schemes for Parks as soon as practicable to support future play equipment procurement.

# 15. PROGRESS ON AREA COMMITTEE DECISIONS

A representative of the Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Governance submitted a report (copies of which had been circulated) which provided an update on progress since the last meeting on decisions taken by the Area Committee, and detailed the current position on ward flexibility funding and delegated budget.

It was noted that work was in the pipeline for the Edgeley ward which would be reflected in future resumé reports.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

The meeting closed at 8.32 pm